Board of Trustees

Christopher Lawson, President
City of Hamilton

Perry Gordon, Vice President
City of Oxford Police Department
Jessica Chandler

Butler County ESC

David Fehr

Butier County Department
of Development

James A. Foster
City of Trenton

Anita Scott Jones
Atrium Medical Center

Mimi Summers, J.D.
Cincinnati State Middletown

Corey Watt
Resident

Executive Director
Matthew M. Dutkevicz

Legal Counsel

Gary Becker
Dinsmore & Shohl, LLP

General Public
Transportation Services

BGo on Demand

Regional Services

R1 - Middletown-Hamilton
R2 - Middletown-Qxford

R3 - Hamilton-Oxford

R4 - Hamilton & Springdale
R6 - Job Connector

Oxford & Miami University Services

U1 - Campus Core
U1IW - Walmart Flyer
U2 - Park & Ride

U3 - Tollgate Loop
U4 - Health Loop

@ ©butlercountyrta ¢) @BCRTA
www.butlercountyrtacom |

ler County Regional Transit Authority
yser Court « Hamilton,OH 45011 . 513.785.5237

* * % PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE * * *

Butler County Regional Transit Authority

Board of Trustees

The BCRTA Board of Trustees is scheduled to meet on
Wednesday, June 20, 2018 in the Board Room of the
Butler County Regional Transit Authority Main Offices
at 3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, Ohio 45011 at 8:00 a.m.

In accordance with the American Disabilities Act, if anyone has a
disability and requires assistance or, in accordance with the
Limited English Proficiency Executive Order, requires translation
services, please call Ms. Vonda Partin at 513.785.5226 or
800.750.0750 (Ohio Relay Service).

For questions or more information regarding this meeting please

call 513.785.5226 or email partinv@butlercountyrta.com.




BUTLER COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY BCARD OF TRUSTEES

I.  -Callto Order & Roll
ll.  Consideration of Absences (Motion Requested)
. Approval of the Agenda (Motion Requested)
IV.  Approval of the May 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes {Motion Requested)
V.  Secretary/Treasurer’s Report — April 2018 (Motion Requested)
V.  Comments from Citizens
VIl.  Director’'s Report
VIll.  Committee & Staff Reports
a.
b.

IX. Action ltems

a.

June 20, 2018, 8:00 AM
BCRTA Board Room
3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, Ohio 45011

PRELIMINARY AGENDA

Okl

Metrics

Resolution No. 18-06-001: Adopting the FY2019 Planning Budget for the Butler
County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA} and Acceptance of the BCRTA Fiscal
Officer’s Certification of Funds and Estimation of Revenues.

Resolution No. 18-06-02: Authorizing the Butler County Regional Transit
Authority {BCRTA) to Submit a 2018 Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage
Development (BUILD) Grant Application in Partnership with Miami University
(Ohio), the City of Oxford and the Talawanda School District, Authorizing BCRTA
to Serve as the Designated Recipient for the Grant, and Recertifying the
Availability of $200,000 in local match for the project.

Resolution No. 18-06-03: Amending Butler County Regional Transit Authaority
(BCRTA) Board Policy 6-07: Drug and Alcohol Testing.

Resolution No. 18-06-04: Authorizing the Butler County Regional Transit
Authority (BCRTA) Executive Director to Execute a Contract for the Purchase of
Commercial Heavy-Duty Tires.

Next Meeting Date:
August 15, 2018 @ 8:00 AM




BUTLER COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
June 20, 2018, 8:00 AM
BCRTA Board Room
3045 Moser Court, Hamilton, Ohio 45011

X.  Adjourn {(Motion Requested)
Immediately Following: Meet with Ohio State Rep. Candice Keller — 9:30-11 AM.

Next Meeting Date:
August 15, 2018 @ 8:00 AM




Aeq mous 1oy pajaoue)d 810Z/1Z/€x« asqy = v pasnoxg = 3 asald = X

3 X X X X Aa10) nEM
X X X X X 1wy ‘siswwing
X X 3 3 3 Uy ‘Sauor 11035
X X X X X SLIY) ‘uosmer]

juesep
X X X X X Au1ad ‘uopuion
X X X X X wir ‘193504
X 3 X X X pineq ‘ayay
X X X X 3 edIssaf ‘Jajpuey)

29Qq AON by ydags  isndny AInf aunfg Ae ady JBAL, qod uer

dJuepudy S931SNJ] JO pieogd V1Y Aluno) J3jing 8T0T

810Z/02/9



Butler County Regional Transit Authority

Board of Trustees Meeting
Wednesday, May 16%, 2018

AAAANAAANNAAANANAAANNAANNANANANAANNANAANAAAAANANAAAANANAAAAANNANAANAAANANAAANAAANANAANAAAANNANANAA

The BCRTA Board of Trustees met on Wednesday, May 16™, 2018 at 8:06 AM at the Butler County Regional Transit
Authority, 3045 Maoser Court, Hamilton, Ohio. Proper public notice was given in advance of the meeting.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

CITIZENS:

Chris Lawson, President STAFF: Matthew Dutkevicz, Executive Director
Perry Gordon, Vice President Robert Ruzinsky, CFO

Jessica Chandler Delene Weidner, Finance Manager (DBELO}
Jim Faster Vonda Partin, Administrative Assistant

Anita Scott Jones
Mimi Summers
Corey Watt

David Fehr OTHERS
PRESENT: None Present

LEGAL None Present
COUNSEL;
None Present

Call to Order & Roll Call
Mr. Gordon called the meeting to order at 8:06 AM. Mr. Dutkevicz took a roll call. A quorum of the
Board was present. Mr. Lawson came in shortly after the meeting started.

Consideration of Absences
Mr. Dutkevicz advised there was one request for an excused absence for today, being Mr. Fehr. Mr.
Gordon requested a motion to excuse Mr. Fehr. Mr. Foster made a motion to accept the excused
absence and Ms. Chandler seconded the motion. The absence was excused. Ms. Scott Jones
explained and apologized that the last few months she was absent due to iflness.

Approval of Agenda
Mr. Gordon requested a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Foster made a motion to accept the
agenda and Mr. Watt seconded the motion. The agenda was approved.

Approval of the April 18, 2018 Board Meeting Minutes
Mr. Lawson requested a motion to approve April 18, 2018 Board Meeting Minutes. Ms, Summers
made a motion to approve the April 18, 2018 meeting minutes as written, Ms. Chandler seconded
the motion. The minutes were approved.

Secretary/Treasurer’s Report
Ms. Weldner gave an update and advised the March report is in the packet. [n the Balance Sheet,
Accounts Receivable is up a hit. Cash Reserves loaks as follows: Available Funds are $1,315,039.20.
Total Board Reserves are $1,571,226.22 which makes Non-Restricted Funds a negative $256,187.02.
Add Back 2019 Capital Match (for Oxford facility) of $323,740.00 and it makes the Current Non-
Restricted Funds $67,552.98.

May 16%, 2018 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes

Page 1




Please see attached Financial Report statistics.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to approve the Secretary/Treasurer’s Report. Mr. Watt made a
motion to approve the report. Mr. Foster seconded the motion. The report was approved.

VI. Comments from Citizens
No citizens were present.

VIl.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A. Metrics & Service

Free Rides for New BGo Riders in May

In order to increase ridership and reach more users, staff will be Introducing free trial rides for new
users travelling in the $10 zone during the month of May. Please share as we market via social
medial

B. Staffing & Facility

Building Refurbishment
Still on the agenda are energy efficient lighting upgrades, garage workstations for maintenance staff,
additional storage and organization for maintenance and exterior building painting.

Staffing
BCRTA is currently seeking CDL and non-CDL drivers as well as an operations supervisor and
maintenance technician. Administrative positions have been filled at this time.

Sherry Hawley, Lead Operations Supervisor, will be retiring from BCRTA effective May 18, 2018.
Sherry came to BCRTA from Miami University First Transit Operation in 2013 and had previously
worked for other private transit contractors including Paul’s Bus Service. We will miss Sherry greatly!
Appreciation or thanks can be mailed to BCRTA in her name or e-mailed to
hawleys@butlercountyrta.com.

Mr. Rob Griffin, Director of Operations in Hamilton, has resigned his position effective May 17, 2018.

C. Planning

Middletown, Monroe & Dayton Connection
Discussions continue to move forward and with a potential implementation in July, 2018.

42X Commuter Services

BCRTA will begin surveying Cincinnati commuters in the next several months to determine the best
solution for making meaningful improvements to Cincinnati commuter service from Butler County.

May 16, 2018 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes Page 2



New Trolleys

Staff visit the Manufacturer’s production facility and the trolley
package upfitter in May. Final selections have been made and
the first trolleys should be delivered in early 2019.

Around Town

BCRTA attended the Smart Cincy Summit and ThinkRegional
event in April. The ThinkRegional event received some press
for the keynote speaker who discussed hydrogen fuel cell
buses: https://www.journal-news.com/business/new-clean-

technology-could-fuel-local-
transportation/yLHZwwMa1lpHbkijliwLY72L/

Matt also learned to navigate to the bus stop as a visually
impaired person with Hamilton Mayor Pat Moeller. Thanks for
the guidance provided by Trustee Chandler!

D. Discretionary Grant Availability

5310
OKI has awarded BCRTA with two years of funding for the paratransit mobile application (scheduling
and payment) and also two years for a staff travel trainer/mobility manager.

5339
BCRTA was awarded $2.6M this April to be put toward the Oxford multimodal facility. The project is
still $4.6M short of being fully funded.

TIGER

TIGER, or BUILD has been released with a due date in July. Contrary to BCRTA’s expectations, funding
for this program was substantially increased. BCRTA plans to submit an application with the project
partners to fund the remaining portion of the Chestnut Street Multimodal Station.

Low & No Emission (LoNo)
The City of Hamilton has deferred for another year on this opportunity.

Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP)
BCRTA is planning to submit an application for the remaining portion of the Chestnut Street

Multimodal Station. Applications are due June 1.

5311 Rural Transit

May 16", 2018 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes Page 3



BCRTA is speaking with ODOT regarding opportunities for rural funding of the Chestaut Street
Muitimadal Station. Although BCRTA’s main office is in the urban area, Oxford may qualify for rural
transit funding.

E. On the Horizon...

Geoff Daniels — Senator Brown’s Office

Geoff Daniels, local aide to US Senator Sherrod Brown is scheduled to visit after the May BCRTA
board meeting. Please mark your calendars if you would like to stay: May 16, 2018 - 9:30 AM. We
may make this a traveling meeting as Senator Brown’s office is familiar with the Oxford facility project
and may like to see the site.

State Representative Candice Keller
We have rescheduled Representativa Keller to visit BCRTA following the June 20 regular board
meeting.

September Meeting Relocated
In order to offer more accessible meeting spaces, we will hold the September BCRTA Board Mesting
at Cincinnati State Middletown on 9/19/2018 at 8:00 AM. Thank you, Trustee Summers, for hosting|

VIll. Committee & Staff Reports

a. Executive Committee: No Executive Committee meeting was held.

b. OKI: Ohio’s roads can now be tested for autonemous vehicles. Funding was approved for the
BCRTA's 5310 application.

€. Metrics: Mr. Dutkevicz provided an overview of the metrics included with this packet for the
month of March, 2017.

IX. Action Items
a. Resolution No. 18-05-01: Authorizing the Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA) to
Apply to OKI for a Surface Transportation Funds {STP} in Support of the Butler County Connect

Chestnut Street Multimodal Station.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 18-05-01. Mr. Foster made a motion to
approve and Mr. Watt seconded the motion.

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows:

Ms. Chandler YES
Mr. Fehr ABSENT
Mr. Foster YES
Mr. Gordon YES
Mr. Lawson YES
Ms. Scott Jones YES
Ms. Summers YES
Mr. Watt YES

May 167, 2018 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes ’ Page 4




The resolution was adopted.

b. Resolution 18-05-02: Authorizing the BCRTA Executive Director to File Applications and

Execute Contracts with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for Fiscal Year {FY)

2019 Ohio Public Transportation Assistance Grants Including, but not limited to, the Ohio

Transit Preservation Partnership Program (OTPPP), The Ohio Elderly and Disabled Transit Fare
Assistance Program {E&D), and the Urban Transit Program (UTP).

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resclution 18-05-02. Ms. Scott Jones made a motion
to approve and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion.

Upon a call of the roll, the vote resulted as follows:

Ms. Chandler YES
Mr. Fehr ABSENT
Mr. Foster YES
Mr. Gordon YES
Mr. Lawson YES
Ms. Scott Jones YES
Ms. Summers YES
Mr. Watt YES

The resolution was adopted.

¢. Resolution 18-05-03: Reappointing Ms. Christy Morris and Mr. Jeff Diver to the Transit Alliance

of Butler County (TABC) Board of Directors.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to accept Resolution 18-05-03. Mr. Watt made a motion to

approve and Ms. Summers seconded the moticn.

Upon a call of the roll, the vete resulied as follows:

Ms. Chandler YES
Mr. Fehr ABSENT
Mr. Foster YES
Mr, Gordon YES
Mr. Lawson YES
Ms. Scott Jones YES
Ms. Summers YES
Mr. Watt YES

May 16%™, 2018 BCRTA Beard of Trustees Meeting Minutes

Page 5




Xl.

The resolution was adopted.

d. Resolution 18-05-04: Authorizing the Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA)
Executive Director to Enter into a Contract for Uniform Apparel Solutions.

Mr. Lawsen requested a motion to accept Resolution 18-05-04. Mr. Foster made a motion to
approve and Mr. Gordon seconded the motion,

Upon a call of the roli, the vote resulted as follows:

Ms. Chandler YES
Mr. Fehr ABSENT
Mr. Foster YES
Mr. Gordon YES
Mr. Lawson YES
Ms. Scott Jlonhes YES
Ms. Summers YES
Mr. Watt YES

The resclution was adopted.

Discussion

Resolution 18-06-XX: Authorizing the Butler County Regional Transit Authority
(BCRTA) to Submit a 2018 Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development
(BUILD) Grant Appilication in Partnership with Miami University (Ohio), the City of
Oxford and the Talawanda School District, Authorizing BCRTA to Serve as the
Designated Recipient for the Grant, and Recertlfymg the Availability of $200,000 in
local match for the project.

Discussion: Mr. Dutkevicz asked the Board to review Resolution 18-06-XX for approval in June,

Building Painting

Mr. Ruzinsky requested authorization to paint the outside of the Berta building in
Hamiiton. Mr. Ruzinsky collected estimates as Bcrta policies requires. All estimates
were less than $40,000. Mr. Ruzinsky recommended authorizing $40,000.

Mr. Lawson requested a motion to approve $40,000 for painting/repairs to the outside
of the building. Ms. Scott-Jones made a motion to approve and Ms. Chandler seconded
the motion.

May 16, 2018 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes Page 6




Xll. Adjourn

Ms. Scott Jones moved to adjourn and Ms. Chandler seconded. The motion carried. The meeting was
adjourned at 9:09 AM,

Matthew M, utkevhﬁ ﬁxecﬁ‘{ciye}Director

[N

G po—"

Approved — Chris Lawson, President, Board of Trustees

May 16%, 2018 BCRTA Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes Page 7




(0L°ev0's)

(9gzLE"Q) (92°60.) ye'cee's
9+°066°€Zr (16°956'82) 6% 216¥°0Sy 00 #S0'65Y
0£°660°CL (26°8/%'G) L#'959'e £C'GEL's
Z¥0Z6'68 (£1229) 0S'#70' LY £/9'999' L
$£ 95621 (Fg120'1) 91'8/6'01 00°060'8L
£6°0¥5'9 (16'99¢1) £0'869'9 00°620'8
L1'60L'SF TR STA S I 00°056'8¥%
S¥'G69'%T (96°855°G) 2 d AR 00°068'9¢
89676219 (BY $52°0L) LG'Z29'95 00 2.8°eL
CCVIZ'CTT (zgecL'T) 81°£98°022 00°000°€2Z
0644921 (19665°2¢) ©l'18/°6CV ¥€ /88201
00000'GLL (00'¥92'9) 00°98%°/Z} 00°05.2'¢EL
00'E€LL'OL - - -
B1°290'981 (£2'882'02) 0¥"'805°281 19°962'€0Z
Y9655 {cozoo'L) 86°28 00°G80'L
007005/ (00°000°2) 00°000°01 00°000'ZL
0566119 00°2sEy 00'CGE'¥8 00°000'08
0.'299'6¢C (06 9L2'0L) 0G'E€85'GL 00°00€'92
186162 (zg0gL'L) Se¥.L'6 1956601
Yruop quaLing 8bueyn Jenioy 12B6png

Jeap 1se7 JIUOQAI 3UalIny JIUOI JualLing

{sso7) f uren

sasuadx3g [e1el

s|ejusy B sases
SWwiay osI
uoneucdsuel ] paseyaing
saxe]
SOUBINSLU|
saIRn
salddnsg % sjeUSIEN
SSOIAIDG
sabung
sabepn

sasuadxg

SONUaASY [B10]

SIS} pui-u|
Buipun4 |eiepaly
Burpung s1e18
Buipung [gooq
Iayip 3 1sesom)
sjejuay
SB0IAISS SOUBUSIUIBH
s921M88 SU0D/ 1B
‘A9Y HsUBI] WO
MBS JOBIUOYD)
sale] Jabusssed
sanuaasy

8107 |udy
Juswale)s swoal]

vid04d



2jB(] O} JeoA

a1B(] O} JEa )

98'85¢'/1 (26'669'¢) ¥ 129'62 9L'eee'ee
6EOLG'ELO'L (€0'168'6¥)) 16'792'989'L 00'9LZ'9gs’l
leeve'se (1t'826'Cl) G8'795'ce R iepeloy
89°189'651 (89'88¥'2) 00°'8LL'¥2L 8999909}
9252206 (ce'geo'oz) L9'LOL'9y 0000222
68°699°¢¢ (89°Z¥8'T) ce1ez'eg 00°001°2¢
B5°€05'29l LE' 18 EE 1£°182'8¢T 00°008°S61
£8°992'201 (0272e8'ct) 0g°/95°c0L 00°00%'2¥1
8% '820'LET (15'696'6%) 6v'8€5°cre 00'805'€6Z
62°961 '¥¥3 (16'L8L°vP) £0'8L8° /%8 00°000'Z68
GZ'G./.0€9') (G6'9¥5'cGL) L¥'Z009LL') Qe 6¥5'698'L
00°000°09t {(00°246'92) 00°€20°809 00'000'GES
00°Zsyor - - -
£5°0256L. (2e'€65'001) 9€°€65TLL 89°08L'cLe
8¥°000°S LE¥BG 9L LE¥E6'02 000FE'Y
00000°0¢ (00°000'8) 00°000°0F 00°000°8¥%
§T6¥9'LST 05°18L'cl 0s18l'eee 00°000°02E
06°508'G8 (0270L'L¥) 0£°66%'€9 00°002°501
60°/¥E'8¢e (%2 '1¥0'0) veviL'IE 89Cz8'el
Ieajf 1se7 abueyn [enjoy 126png

ojeq 0] iDL

(ss07) s uren

sesuadxg |10

slejusy B seses
swiay| oSl
uonenocdsuel] peseyaing
SoXe]
2oUEBINSU|
saninn
se|ddng 3 seusEW
Sa0IABG
sobuuy
sabepn

sasuadxg

SaNUsASY [B101

SIS} pury-uj
Buipun4 [elepsq
Buipun4 aie1g
Buipun4 2007
Jayl0 % Isele|
seuay
S20IAeS SoURUSUIBIN
s301M9G "suoD/ 1B
ey USUBLL J2UI0
S0IAI2S 10BIUOD)
sole Jabuassed
SONUAASY

810z |udy
1UALSIE)S SWODU]

v140d



Date Reference Jenl Trans Description Debit Amt Credit Amt Balance
Checking - PNC (National City)

4/1/18 Beginning Balance 111,739.16
4/2/18 (3/28/18-03/31/1{ CRJ Farebox Receipts 1,382.55

4/2/18 124178 CRJ GovDeals.com 8,020.00

4/3/18 7609 CDJ Cincinnati Bell 141.80
4/3/18 7610 CcDJ CFR Inc - Camera Security Now 14,159.00
4/3/18 7611 CDJ Cox Media Group 95,94
4/3/18 7612 CDJ Cornett's Pressure Cleaning 1,014.00
4/3/18 7613 cDJ Fleet Pride 1,102.80
4/3/18 7614 CDJ Fastsigns 220901 19.50
4/3/18 7615 ()] Gillig 2.458.09
4/3/18 7616 CDJ Heritage-Crystal Clean LLC 311,93
4/3/18 7617 CD} Johnny G's Professional Servie 1,419.00
4/3/18 7618 CDIJ ODACS, Inc 125.00
4/3/18 7619 CDI OChio Hydraulics Inc, 34.11
4/3/18 7620 CDI Pohlman Tire Inc. 5,762.20
4/3/18 7621 CcDI RICOH USA, INC 23.56
4/3/18 7622 CcBJ Richard Welsh 136.39
4/3/18 7623 CDJ Verizon Wireless 1,023.30
4/4/18 7624 cDJ Ohio Deferred Compensation 100.00
4/4/18 04/02 - 04/3/18  CRJ Farebox Receipts 796,70

4/5/18 PRWE 3/30/18 GENJ  CSPC Cl#1090 223,89
4/5/18 PRWE 3/30/18 GENJ 77,186.23
4/5/18 PRWE 3/30/18 GENJ  Gam Ck#1088 93.38
4/5/18 PRWE 3/30/18 GQENI  Gan Ck#1G89 258.13
4/5/18 PRWE 3/30/18 GENIJ 14,741.70
4/5/18 PRWE 3/30/18 GENIJ 725.00
4/5/18 AT 4/5/18 CDJ Paycom 603.76
4/12/18 252737 CRJ City of Middletown 89,422.01

4/13/18 7625 CDJ ABC Mungie Transit Supply 1,081.50
4/13/18 7626 CDI Affordable Pest Control Inc, 47.00
4/13/18 7627 cDI Petty Cash 42927
4/13/18 7628 cDI Brighton Spring Service 1,256.13
4/13/18 7629 CDJ City of Hamiltion 43.00
4/13/18 7630 CcnJ Cornett's Pressure Cleaning 836.00
4/13/18 7631 CDJ Dinsmore & Shohl LLP 2,361.00
4/13/18 7632 CDJ Fuller Ford 1,221.44
4/13/18 7633 CD) Gillig 3,655.50
4/13418 7634 (83} Jake Sweensy Chrysler Jeep 286.62
4/13/18 76335 CD}§ Kristin Fryer 149,63
4/13/18 7636 CD} Luxurious Wraps, LLC 1,172,00
4/13/18 7637 CDJ Mobilcomm 180.00
4/13/18 7638 CDJ My Parls Express 1,020.80
4/13/18 7639 CchJ ODACS, Inc 250,00
4/13/18 7640 cDJ Overhead Door of Greater Cingi 302.00
4/13/18 7641 Dl Office Depot Ine. 106.98
4/13/18 7642 CDJ Pixels and Dots 65.00
4/13/18 7643 CDJ Prefered Fire Protection 716.27
4/13/18 7644 (1p]] Porls Petroleum Co Ine 752.40
4/13/18 7645 CDJ Port Technology LLC 3,972.35
4/13/18 7646 CDJ Refitt's LLC 350,00
4/13/18 7647 cDJ Rumplke Of Ohio Inc, 156.10
4/13/18 7648 cnJ Staples Credit Plan 348.39
4/13/18 7649 CcD) Talawanda School District 12,834.96
4/13/18 7650 cDl Verizon Wireless §03.34
4/13/18 7651 cDJ Whitworth Bus Sales Inec. 1,123.46
4/13/18 7620V cDJ City of Harmiltion 45,00

4/16/18 A0741222 CRJ Farebox Receipts 4,056.00

4/16/18 0037296944 CRI Ohio Dept of Medicaid 4,430.00

4/16/18 01027948 CRJ Butler County CDBG 235,000.00

4/16/18 0007661 CRJ BCRTA Ttems 580.00




4/16/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/17/18
4/18/18
4/18/18
4/18/18
4/15/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/19/18
4/20/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
42518
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/25/18
4/27/18
4/27/18
4/27/18
4/30/18
4/30/18

4/30/18

120252

7652

7653

7654

7655

7656

7657

7658

7659

7660

7661

7662

7663

7664

04/11 - 4/17/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
PRWE 4/13/18
AT 4/19/18
CASH 4/20/18
ACH 04/25/18
7665

7666

7667

7663

7669

7670

7671

7672

7673

7674

7675

7676

7677

7678

7679

7680

7681

7682

7683

7654V

4/18 - 4/24/18
7684

04/30/18

AT 4/30/18

Savings - PNC (National City)

4/1/18

4/20/18
4/30/18
4/30/18

4/30/18

CC 04/20/18
04/30/18
04/30/18

CRJ
CDJ
CcDi
CDJ
CDlJ
cDl
CcpDJ
cnI
cnl
cnJ
cnJ
cDI
cDl
chI
CRI
GENJ
GENJ
GENJ
GEN)
GENJ
GENJ
GENJ
GENJ
GENJ
GENIJ
GENI
CDI
CRI
CRI
cnJ
cDl
CDJ
CDJ
(sin}
CDJ
cDJ
CDJ
CcDI
CDJ
D)
cDl
CcDJ
CDr
CDJ
CDJ
cDi
cni
CcDJ
CcDJ
CRI
CcDJ
GENJ
CnJ

CRJ
GENI
GENJ

BCRTA Items

Auditor of State

Cintas Corporation

City of Hamilton - UQ

City of Hamilton - Utilities
Delene Weidner

Ka-Comm In¢

KA Enterprises, Ine,
Millennium Business Systems
Minuteman Press - Fairficld
Chio Deferred Compensation
Rumpke Of Ohio Ine.

Ron Wogenstahl

SuperFleet Mastercard Program
Farebox Receipts

CSPC Ck#1093

Garn Ck#1091

Garn Ck#1092
Ck#1027
Ck#1031
CK#1028
Ck#1030

Ck#1029

Paycom

BCRTA Ttems

Federal Transit Administration
Butler County Sheriff Dept.
Bethesda Healthcare Ine,
Cinginnati Bell

Cineinnati Bell Any Distance
Cox Media Group

Cornett's Pressure Cleaning
CenterGrid, LLC

Fastenal Company

Gillig

Gienfare

Jarrett Siler - Expenses

Fim's Tire & Auto

Kleem nc.

Minuteman Press - Fairfield
ODACS, Iac

Ohio Deferred Compensation
PERS

Sue Kadel

Verizon Wireless

City of Hamilton - UO
Farebox Receipts

Ohio Dept. of Jobs & Family Se
Service Charge

PNC Card Purchases

Current Period Change
Ending Balance

Beginning Balance
BCRTA Items
Interest Income

Service Charge
Current Period Change
Ending Balance

100,000.00

1,967.57

850,75
126,223.00

45.00
1,822.01

5,285.00
1,112.09
45.00
3,313.31
49546
104,27
4,328.68
287.48
186.52
100.00
45.18
495.66
21,428.09

59.46
85,921.99
92.77
725,00
320.99
80.00
100.00
156.00
106.00
17,250.78
150.00
622.71

2,750.00
211,15
141,52

1,547.93
66.86
605.00
346.61
166.13
864 81
174,39
49138
1,434.00
98.88
397.50
125.00
100.00

77,931.04
440.00
948,61

850.68
17.25
3,057.81

364,649.59

393,352.84

-28,703.25

562.07
3.56

0,14

565,63

0.14

83,035.91

16,623.22

565.49

17,188.7%




Savings - PNC Bank

4/1118
4/16/18
4/30/18

4/30/18

120252
04/30/18

CRJ
GENJ

Beginning Balance
BCRTA Items - Transfer from Savings

Interest Income
Current Period Change

Ending Balance

180.78

100,000.00

180,78

100,000.00

757,902.92

-99,819.22

658,083.70




‘uoisuad 0] polElal SMOINO POLSD

Bunoengns pue 18ays soueleq su Jo uonoas Aunba pue sewjqel panodal syl o Aungel uoisuad jau syl pue uoisusd o]
psje[al smoyul pausiep Buppe Ag uolipuoo |RlouBUY [BNI9E 8,1 40g Bulpueisiepun Jaies & uieb |im JLSLUSies [enueuly
SIY} JO sIoSN pue Auepy “sslijiqe] pue s)soo uaisued 1oy Buguncooe sosiAal ARueoyuBIS Yoiym Lz JUSLISIEIS gave) 40
juswpusuly Ue—suUoisuad 1o} Bugioday jeloueul] pue Bujunosdy, ‘g0 WaWelels gSvo paldope viY0g ‘'SLoz Buung,

Z51eL'818'LL
[ended pue
sanlliger [eo L

09'92Z'20E’LL

25 184°818°LL
s]essy [Blol

Pb IE9'6T
(pO'18¥' 122'G)
000L¥'62
00°98¥'162'6
€Z'SP9'198°C

2¥ 650'L6
BPBEF FOL'F

LE'09.°186°6

(59'948'022'%)
Z5'LER' Lyl
8/°¢/8°9LL
0Z 122°189
LE'6Z8'125°T
9£'€29'/60°6

GL'EBL'8ET'L
996’6

Z6'¥05'9LS
SLUODU| JoN
sBuieg paueiey 00'8.5'ce S]eNRIL pauesUn
[ended a0 00'000'0% Spun4y yojepy aumng
ieydeD [eiepay 00°048'2S $pun4 SPIYSA V14
Aynb3 aoueeg - SdUl{ YOV andasey
Ayunb3 B6'GES'96 Qld panusoy
- so[geied PUIo
SUQIsSUad-sMOjju| palisiag mh.mNN..._V:‘ wm_nm>m& :O.:»mn_
Auiiqer uoisuad 189N 21'200'6.1 s[qeAed sjUnoooy
samqen wsp-Buo, SOMNIgEI JUSLIND
Aunb3 2 senmigen
LT 1L6°088°)
~ideq "winooy
uoneaousy AR S-dIM
“OSIN B SojiuSWY
Wwawdinbz p 2inpuing ZLTLS'G6 spiedaid
pue 3 sbuiping £1°051°926 3|qBAIROSY SIINCIVY
S3IIYSA 00°000°) yses Mjed
Juswdinb3z @ Ayadoid 00°000°05 usodaq pig
02°£90'859 ONd - sbuiaeg
SUOISU4-SMOIANYD palisiad 1279812 ONd - sBuineg
1988y UDISUD4 JoN 16°GE0CR ONd - Buniosyn
SI2SSY JSUIO., SIS TRITET g
sjossy
810Z ludy

(Aupger] uoisuad J9N) 3osyg doueleq
v.iyog



SJUBIS) U0 19 A 10N Spsfold Jo areys (8007 6L0Z-8102

palinbay yaep

YA '9d ‘a3l N
YA '9d 'd3an N

29°169°6LE

00°0¥.°€2E
(8¢°8¥0v)

19vLS'81E’L

00 0rL'cer

L9V1L'vES

(0G°220'8ET)

(00°082'600°L)
(00°0¥0'PSE’L)

00°000°002
00'686'069')
05°€08'¥7EC

6Z°99%'VLE L

(z6'¥0G'9LS)
LZ'1/6'0€8'1L

SDUN- POJOLIISOM-UON UL,
yojep [exded L0 oeqppy

SpuUn4 PajaLISIY-UON
SOAIDS9Y pieog [e10L
spun4 Asuabunuon
spur4 uswsae|dsy euden
('susAl 2) spund fended Bupuop
sjuels vi

{yolewaA) Jo palinbay yolew

yoely feoo pajoslold 6102 SS9
yolelN fe00 pejoslold 8102 SS9

oBpald yore Ao PIOXO
(stueib Bupuad) g0-xx0-8102-HO
10-960-9102-HO

mcormm:n_o uelo) alels [Bo07

SaAlaS9Y pleog

spund ajqejieAy
sanIger] usung
S)8SSY JUB1INY

810z |udy
SaAIas9y YSED

v.1d0d



Director’s Notes - June 2018

Metrics & Service

o Free Rides for New BGo Riders
Bcrta offered free rides for first time BGo riders in May. The program was successful but staff plan to
increase exposure by continuing to offer the program for a few more months.

Staffing & Facility

o Building Refurbishment
Still on the agenda are energy efficient lighting upgrades, garage workstations for maintenance staff,
and additional storage and organization for maintenance. Painting of the building began in early
June.

o Staffing
Bcrta is currently seeking CDL and non-CDL drivers as well as a maintenance technician.
Administrative positions have been filled at this time.

Since last month Bcrta has welcomed Mark Franklin and Michael Scott as Operations Supervisors,
Ryan McGuff as Planning Intern and Steven Jones as Maintenance Technician.

Planning

o Middletown, Monroe & Dayton Connection
Discussions with the City of Middletown are moving forward with a potential implementation in July
or August 2018. The Cincinnati Regional Chamber has also coordinated discussion with the partners
and added Uber and Drive Ohio to the discussion to help identify and plan other options. Bcrtais
assisting in supporting this process.

o Hamilton Service
Staff are meeting with Hamilton elected officials in June to discuss opportunities for additional or
modified service on the West side of the City.

Discretionary Grant Availability

o 5339
Bcrta was awarded $52.6M this April to be put toward the Oxford multimodal facility. The project is
still $4.6M short of being fully funded.

o TIGER
TIGER, or BUILD has been released with a due date in July. Contrary to Bcrta's expectations, funding
for this program was substantially increased. Bcrta plans to submit an application with the project
partners to fund the remaining portion of the Chestnut Street Multimodal Station.

o Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP)



Director’s Notes — June 2018

Bcrta applied for the remaining portion of the Chestnut Street Multimodal Station. Applications were
due June 1. The program has $20M available and received applications for nearly S60M. No scoring
is available yet.

o 5311 Rural Transit
Bcrta had been approved and invited to apply for ODOT 5311 program dollars aimed at rural transit in
Oxford. Staff plan to request funds for the Chestnut Fields Multimodal Station.

o CDBG
Bcrta’s R6 Job Connector has been recommended again for $25,000 in Butler County CDBG money.

On the Horizon ...

o State Representative Candice Keller
We have rescheduled Representative Keller to visit Berta following the June 20 regular board
meeting.

o Trustee Candidate, Roshawn Jenkins
We have scheduled Mr. Jenkins Wednesday, August 15, 9-10 AM an interview with the Board during
the Board meeting.

o September Meeting Relocated
In order to offer more accessible meeting spaces, we will hold the September Berta Board Meeting at
Cincinnati State Middletown on 9/19/2018 at 8:00 AM. Thank you, Trustee Summers, for hosting!

o US Congressman Warren Davidson
We have scheduled Congressman Davidson to visit Berta following the October 17 regular board
meeting.



BCRTA Metric Scorecard

Passengers per Revenue Hour

Apr-17  May-17
Demand Response 1.5 14
Fixad Route* 19.3 12.2
Commuter Route 41 28

Jun-17
13
16
2.4

Jul17  Aug-17  Sep-7 Oct17
1.5 1.5 15 1.7
15 9.4 216 216
22 30 43 37

Nov-17

22.4
35

Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18
1.7 15 1.8 18
18.3 9.5 230 231
28 23 4.1 32

Apr-18

22.0
8

Apr-17 Jun-i7 jan-18 feb-18 X Apr-18
*does not include shuttle trips
Cost per Passenger (Blended)
Apr17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul47 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18
$ 603 § 1270 § 4227 5 2026 $ 1856 S 544 5 580 5 691 1003 § 2184 5 512 § 653 5 529
345.00
540.00
5350
530.00
$25.00
S20.00
$15.00
31000
55.00
8,
Apri? May-17 Aug-ld sep17 Cer17 Dec-17 lan-18 fab-18 Mar-13 Apr-18
Admin/Overhead Cost per Revenue Hour
Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 QOct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18
$ 1140 5 1414 3 1517 5 2191 5 1551 $ 1169 5 868 S 1385 5 1619 5 2067 § 1088 S 1387 § 977
51000
5500
5
Apr-i7 May-17 Aug:i7 Sep-17 Nov-17 Dec-i7 bE] Apr-18
Butler County RTA Accidents/Injuries
Fault Aprd7  May-17 Jun-17 Jul-i7  Aug-17  Sep-17 Octd47  Nowv-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18
Major (&S 40) - 1 - 1 - 2 = . - - 1 = 2
MNon Major {S&8 50) - - - - - - - 1 - - - - -
MNon Reportable - 2 - 1 3 4 2 - - 1 1 1 -
Total - 3 - 2 3 4 2 1 - 1 2 1 -
No Fault
Major (S&S 40) - - - - - - . - R R - - R
Mon Major (843 30) - - - - - - - - 1 - = 2 -
Non Reportable 4 1 - - 1 1 2 2 2 1 2 - 2
Total 4 1 - - 1 1 ] 2 3 1 2 H 2
=8 lio Fault Totai
4 4

Apr-17 May-17

Mar-18




Average Fleet Age (in years)

Averge Age (in years)

Apr-17
4.82

Apri?

Jct-17 Nov-17 Cec-17

Qct-17 Nev-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18
5.37 5.45 4.71 4.56 4.54 4.71 4.75

Fab-18 Mar-18

Road Calls

Demand Response/ADA
Fixed Route
Commuter Route

40

Apr-1T
1.0
1.0
1.0

Qct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18

1.0 2.0 20 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
00 0.0 1.0 1.0 10 20 1.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0
@ Demand Raspanse/ADA W Fived Routs Commuter Route

Nov-17 Cec-i7 Jan-18 Fab-18 Mar-18

Park & Ride

42X Ridership

12,006

5,000
5,000
4,00

2,000

Apr-17

8.520

Apr-17 May-17

Dct17 Hov-17

Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18
9,434 8,556 5.998 9.085 8.553 2.108 8.56%

W 22X Ridership

lan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-ig




BCRTA Resolution No. 18-06-01

Adopting the FY2019 Planning Budget for the Butler County Regional
Transit Authority (BCRTA) and Acceptance of the BCRTA Fiscal
Officer’s Certification of Funds and Estimation of Revenues.

Whereas the Ohio Ravised Code (ORC) requires a budget to be completed annually and approved by the
Board of Trustees by July 15 of the preceding year; and

Whereas the FY2019 Planning Budget is an ORC requirement but does not appropriate funds; and

Whereas in FY2019 BCRTA anticipates continuing current directly operated services and including the
Miami University campus services; and

Whereas in the last quarter 2018, the BCRTA Board of Trustees will be asked to adopt a FY2019
Operating Budget and 2019 appropriations; and

Whereas on July 16, 2008, the BCRTA Board designated and appeinted its Secretary/Treasurer as the
BCRTA fiscal officer; and

Whereas the BCRTA Board of Trustees adopts the following FY2019 Planning Budget and accepts the
fiscal officer certification of funds and estimation of revenues as follows:

Estimated FY2019 Revenues & Expenses

Estimated Cash Balance 1-1-2019 S 744,783
Estimated Revenues $ 9,807,189
Estimated Expenses $ 10,031,576
Projected Year-End Cash S 520,396

Now therefore, be it resolved:

That the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby adopts the above FY2019 Planning Budget and accepts the
fiscal officer’s certification of funds and estimation of revenues. Furthermore, that the BCRTA
Secretary/Treasurer is authorized to do all things necessary to enact 4 resolution.

Adoptedﬁzo 018
C] Mé__,,__,

Chris Lawson, BCRTA Board President Mat'zﬁew Dutkeﬁ&‘,’BWﬁve Director

-




Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA)

FY2019 Tax Budget Certifications

[, Robert E. Ruzinsky, Fiscal Offlcer of the BCRTA, herhy certify the follawing:

Estimated Cash Balances as of 1-1-19 (General Transit Fund)

On Deposit - Checking
On Deposit - Savings |
On Deposit - Savings |
BCRTA Petty Cash Fund

Estimated Revenues for FY2019 (General Transit Fund}

BCRTA - FY18 Receivables

FY2019 Operaticns
Passenger Fares
Contract Revenues
Partnership Transit Revenues
Sale of Services
Transit Development Program
Park-n-Ride Program
Federal Operating Funds
State Operating Funds
Agency Operating Funds
Other Revenues

Federal Capital Grant Funds
State/Other Capital Grant Funds

Total Funds Available

39,783.00
700,000.00
4,000.00
1,000.00

744,783.00

150,000.00

150,000.00

134,097.00
32191200
979,200.00
146,830.00
1,901,851.00
500,000.00
1,718,864.00
76,500,00
13,280.00

5,792,584.00

3,414,605.00
450,000.00

3,864,605.00
10,551,872.00

Anticipated Appropriations for FY2019 (General Transit Fund)

BCRTA - FY18 Payables

FY2019 Operations
Wages
Fringes
Services
Materials & Supplies
Utilities
lnsurance
Taxes & Fees
Purchased Transportation
Misc. ltems
Leases & Rentals
Contingency

FY2019 Capital ltems
Revenue Vehicles & Related [tems

Transit Centers & Facility Improvements
Equipment, Technology, Amenites & Other

Total Appropriations
Projected Funds Available 12-31-19

150,000.CC

150,000.0C

2,729,520.00
898,134.00
451,044.00
599,148.00
98,226.00
220,932.00

500,000.00
65,916.00

45,900.00

5,608,820.00

1,564,006.00
2,331,250.00
377,500.00

4,272,756.00
10,031,576.00
520,396.00

Robert E. Ruzinsky - Fiscal Officer, BCRTA

6/20/2018




(osp'si0'1) $ (osy'sio0l) ¢ (bOO'LB4} % (086'89%) $ S1E'elL $ GBE'0TS $ £8L vl %
(/70'209'er) ¢  (cog'ges’e) ¢ {(ere'ozs’a)  § (cig'zee's) ¢ (eesvzeil) ¢ (Lisies'sl) & (geg'per's) §
(oosz98) - - (00g'zve) {00G°2tT) (005248} (058°252)
{0S/°c¥2'6) - - {osz'Eee?) (05Z'185'%) (sZ'1ee'D) {69g'zrL)
{gLe'sLy'y) (£56'805) (228'965) {or5°cse) (986'684) (900°795'1) (gzr'ees’l)
{608°7¥Z'2) (10s709t) (F5e'25F) {ogeait) (¥65'6EF) (F26'0¢%) (¥25'Zzt)
{oo0‘00s'2) (000008) (000'008) {ooo‘nos}) (000‘00S) (ooo‘oos) (Fes'eeh)
{086°2LL'E) (z€578%9) (12g'seo) {rog'ces) (LeL'119) (8¥L'665) (oo¥'285)
(15Z°2¥£°T) (5zz'asy) (zeo'asv) {99zZ'60F) (co0'0or) (Pro LGt (00z'2vy)
{oov'az8'at) ¢ {oso'gzee) ¢ (os9'eb8'e)  $ {(Z1z'Fli'el ¢ (Boz'o0l's) $ (bS9i2oe) ¢ (pZSToss'E)  §
129°625°ZF $ SS¥ 09'S $ sre'eTi’s $ ves'elg's  § 6¥E'00S'LL $ TLELOFOL % 31L9'641'8 $
SRR LY $ 6S¥°1¥2'9 $ 528029 $ 217698 $ +G5086'01 $ 6812696 § ZZe'ool's $
000°009°L - - 000°052 000°006 000'05F -
¥SZL09°LL ZoL'sor 2000l /82°818°C 685°08%'¥ G09vLF'e 7TEerS L
£08°58%'2 986 /91"t Z0Z'BER' L TI6'0LY' L 692 '8ii L ¥o8°gLL'L 818'029°L
1BrEE] £og'eLl £96'601 1£9°991 ¥9£°col 091091 0Z0°2GL
6L¥'S6Z°01 LEFibLE Cr7'B60'T L1T'850°T 816'210'2 LGE'RI6'} 095'6E6°L
96.'665°2 816655} SELBES' L 092'815'}L 8.'86% 1 002°64%' )L FESESK L
160'CLET 665'E61 LZ6'E8Y CEF VLY 0£1'59F 600'95¥ 890 /FF
oLy, $  (poo‘LB2) % (086°39%) % GLZ'olL % 46£'0ZS $ £8LVWri $ 96Z°cl0'L &
s|eo £202 Fdi T4 1Z0T 0202 6L0Z 8102
£20Z2-6L02 1ebpng pajoafoig

20UERg SIUSLLESEAU| pue ysen Bupug
posINgGSI(] SPUN (€101

safuaury ¥ uswdinby

suawaaosdy Agey R s Usuel |

wawdinby ¥ ssPYap anusasy
sjuawasoidw| [eyden

sasuadx3 jau0

uojjepodsURL ] paseyaing

SOOIAIeS JOBLUOD

sayddng R [eueie

safiup4 g sebeppy
sasuadxg Gunessdn

a|geliEAY SpUNd [B10]
PaAIBOSY Spund [Blo]

w0l )saI8iu)
PaAIS0OY SpUn-y 180

(VYL4Dg-uoN) [E20T JOYID
1040 - =1Es
V14 - fesspag

spun4 sjuelsy [eude)

S3URISISSY 21ElS § [21apsd
SSUNSASH XBY
“asIN B S8IIBS JO S[ES
[E207 J8U}Q B pPUng "ASQ JSuUBl L
suswsaiby diysieuped
spoeUoD g sale sebusssed
sanuassy Bugeisdo

aouejeg fusUnsaAU] pue yse) Buluuibsg

Molq ysen
1ebpng feuld 6102
Yid AINNOD H¥311NG



abreyq jepdes) @207 I8y SS0T [ UIED
(radaq) =baeyn |ezde) (007

aBieyo [exde |eoo alcjag S50} [ ules)

sasuadxy |Ejol
sanuanay |ejot

sasuadx] |e10]

(969'a85'1) $ (22991 $ (6g9'0L¥) $ (008°20%) $ {652'625) $ (10£v2) $  {s9128)
(2/2°280°1) (g1z'522) (008'022) (Lr'91T) (ezz'z1T) (s80'807) (596'€02Z}
(61L8'Z05) $  (959'¢6)) % (g59'68L) ¢ (o£1'g81) $ (e€0'211) $ £9.€8l $ g219'LZ1L
605'980'6C 256'620'9 22S'LT6'S 212'518's 266'012°S 129°209°G Z81°105°S
0BS'E85'8T $ 962'9€8°S $ €09tel's $ 180'BZO'¢  $ S96't6S'S § pes'Eel’'s § 000°€29's
605'980'62 $ 7S6'670°9 $ zzsize's ¢ 212Gl Ze6'OLLS 0§ lzR'B0R's § Z8L'L0s's
GOR'8ET ¥89'6F 60/'eb 52y gLe'ar 006'G¥ 000'st

ZE0'Ere 05e'Ls 156'69 085°89 GeZ'29 91669 ¥ZO'r9

000°00s'e 000'00G 000°005 000°00g 000'00G 000°005 ¥ES'Ter
BEL'BRL'E rl'ace 6P reEe 858°62¢ Lse'sZe 286022 009912
FA AR RN £2£'901 2T V0L 61204 E6L'00) 9zZ'36 00£'06

066°21L°E 1£5°819 1Z8'5e9 pegiezo IELLLO 166G 00¥°28S
LSz 1PE'T 5ZZ'e8t 759'el¥ 99z'69% S90°09¥ PO LSy 0027y
9Z6'CLOY 01246 101°€56 Gl¥YE6 L60°0L6 £1°868 ¥Zs'088
2ESP0ZTF) $ 0ZG%S6'Z ¢ 985'968'Cc ¢ ¢62'6E9'C § Oolivei'z ¢ oze'sLT % 000'929'C
065'€95'9Z $ 962'9£9'G $ £99°1EL°Ss ¢ 180'6EY'S § G9B'EES's  § tES'EEL'S § 000°€29'S
T v - - - s aete] z19'798 812462
025605 266501 gL6'e0L 2/8°101 8/9°66 0Z6°26 000°96

168012 09/'1¥1 £98'¥i | Ce0'TFL 2EZ'6EL 20G6'9¢) 1£8°€Sl
£EE'ess’l LLF'LEE CLB'¥2E Z¥s'alLe 96Z°21E zL1'908 691°00¢
vIEVFE Y £29'798 £15'698 Zrs'ers ¥06°1£8 265'518 009662
ZLL'69 G1E'7L €601 f18€L rGEel 09z'cl 0z0’clL

60196 Q08'z8 z8l'Le 165'6. 0£0'8. 00894 000°G4

D0H'00S'C 000008 000'00S 000005 000°005 000°00G ¥EG' 26
01£'269'6 529'9590'2 092310 089'8/6°) 893°6E6°1 ESSL06 L 095798°)
6980/ 886851 0.8'651 ¥18'25L 218'6v 1 088°9%| 00011
96.'G60'S g8L6'650'L SeL'6E0'L 09£°8L0"1 ¥82°966 002'6.6 000'096
£¥Z'6/9°1 8 ere 919°1¥E LIB'PEE 068°8ZE PRI s 0Ca'SLE
9be' 169 $ 1GL'sPL $ s0eTrE $ GLG'6EL % B/2'0€) $ /60'PEL $ gor'LElL
s[ejo) £Z02 A dira 1zoz 020g 6102 8102

£20Z-6102 1ebpng pajoaloid

Aouafiuguon
sjejuSy ¥ sasea]
SuWIBY "osIy

uojjepiodsuel ] peseyoing

5984 R SeXB]
{Aiqery) eouemsyy
SIIEN

se|ddng ¥ s|EusiEy

SaoIAIES
safiu
gafiepn

senuansy [B10]

[RISPaS J2UI0

W g Buneredo olLeg

vav L0ges

SOUBUSJUIE|Y SAIUSASIH DaLRsURl [
20UBLSIUIEI SATUSASEY GEES
URUSIUIEIY aAlUaARld JOEG

Bunered L0ES
spun4 |eleps4
sanUsAay 1810

sBuprue] usunsesy)
spdisoay JOLpQ/XE] [BI07
spund funeiedp Aousby
spun4 Bunessdg elE18
welbold api-u-ped
weibold juswdoas(] Isuel]

Sa0IABG 1O 88

gsnusAsy Ysuer] diysieupey

SanNUBAa}Y 10BILOD
sale Jebuassed

sasuadx] 9 sarnusAsy
1afpng jeuld 6102
Y14 ALNNOD ¥31LNg



‘Buipund eptuiioL felaped Ul Jeok B UONUT Z°Z$ SaAiedad AUaLIng v iy

£F6 ¥
062°'399°Z
0£4°799
505°E68
QG6FET' L
000°000°L
{r16°026'2) (16'026°2) {9g5'ee6'2) (925'706'2) (F68'05k 1) 96%°0F6' | 6¥2'ceT’)
- - - - - Y02 ¥E6 SZ1'9Zh
{e00'zEs’s) - - {co5'ca8) (osr'ees't) {856'¥60°E) (g8z'260'1)
(a1g'eeL’L) (022°2%1) (€98 F¥L) (c2o'zrL) (169°F02) {6/1°66F) (6¥0°LEY)
05/'809°7 - - - - 05£°899'Z -

- - - - - - £¥6'6¥Y
€5T'€58'2 - - GOG'C6Y 0£2'%99 856762’ L 000'000°L
L6E'0LL 092251 £08°rrL £20°CFL 8EZ'BEL 805°GCL LEQEEL
GZl'set - - - 4\ A ] [ TAN=TA 969°28e
¥9T'BGLL ¥ozZ'651° L ¥92°606 +¥92'659 +09°'205 POr osE vaz'are

(000'6EE) - - (009°86) (o0o'e6) {008°L¥L) (goz'6.L)
000'0S2°L 000052 000°062 600°05¢ 00005 000°05Z e A A
v9g'sve ¥92'606 ¥92°659 ¥98'/0§ ¥or'95¢ ¥oz'ere 592'6/11

(8/1°080't) (g21'080) (064'¥¥5'c) (06/'c95'c) (852'956°1) 8Z2°679 09€°255

(16z'ovL's) (zoL'sot) (z99'0.2¥) (zz0'0z8'1) (805'¥58'Z) {1v8°241) (652°00€)

(98z"L¥7E'D) (9zz'0ze't) ik Liral B (0o6"R9Z'1) (8L0'PHT'L) (¥39'612°L) (892°661°L)

{(000"005°2) {oo0'00S) {o00‘00g} (oo0'00s) (ooo‘oos) {000‘00%) (res‘eer)
000'0S8' 000°066°L 000°066°L 000'066°L 000°066°1 000066 GBL'986°)
09€° /GG (062'7ira'e) (062 'co5'c} (85°856'1) 879'6¥2 09£°155 12z'095
6¥L°EET’ L (9z5'5¢8'T) (9Z5'706°2) (r6R°05¥'L) 961 0F6°L 2R AN 061'BL0°L

s[ejo] £202 ZzZ0T LZ0E 0zZ0Z 6102 gL0Z
£Z0Z-610Z jefipng pajasfolg

:spsonboy Bupuny Buipusd

(W ‘BupeiedQ) 0LES

(Ayoed ploxQ) senned sng g sng

(suep g ‘sasng |lews 9) d1S

(pepueixg g "ou] S9sNg ||BWS 6) DVYIND

{sesng Jlewg g ‘sssng abie7 Z) DYWD

(sng pews | 'sasng abie Z) DVIND
:sysenbey Supung paaciddy

spun4 Jueis) jeleped ssueleg Bupuy

spun [zlapa- 180 10 8JUEEg
s1oofoid [ende) o pesn
suofessd() 1o} pasn
swetfold V14 B2u0
(o) oles
d1lg/DYIND
10Q0 "BlA spung jespad
spund jo sougeg Buiiuibeg
spund alejg/lelspad Byio
Spund Qg5 Jo soUe|eg
spafold [eudes 1ol pasn
suoilesadQ Jo) pasn
Y1 HOH 0] UOREQD|Y [enuuy
spund jo sougjeq Butuuibeg
spund enuuod gees
spund Qg6 jo aauejeg
s1alold reyudesy 10} pasn
sucnelad 10} pasn
M paualsuel|
Y1309 01 UOHEDD|Y |enuuy
spun4 Jo aoueeg Buuubag
spund gjnuloy JOes
spun4 Juels) [elspad Buiuuibag

Buipund Juels a1e1s g |elapag
yebpng [euld 5162
Yid ALINNGD ¥311Ng



‘asue seyuniioddo Buipuny eaey Aey) proys wey) jof Buiuuerd ede sm 12Y] ] o 0} S1EASUOWSH jIim atay way] Busr] sieek Buiicadn uf 190png ayj ojul LIS 8AGLU [fiM 8M
spebpng auyas pue spaloud aeidiuod am Sy sy o) Buipuny 1no Bupjess aq jm pue SIS0 pue osety] noge yuiyy o} Buiue)s ere em ‘ued 1ebpng ay) jo ped 184 10U sy

pouue]d Bwog ing - pejobpng jo4 10N sposfold adming

(g1 ppny /L0Z Uo peseq)

SIESSE Uf JUSLLISSAL] JUSLND JN0 JO ]SO [BILOSHY feulbLiQ) H- LN

sainypuadxy |eudel) [Blo |

SIBYS Y1 - [2007]
Buipung ¥ UON - 1840
Burpun Juels 8jE1g
Buipung juels) j2iapa]

aainog Ag Buipun joafoud [eyden

saloly erded (elo

1210 9 semusury ‘ABojouyoa] uswidinbg
sjuswsacrdw| AIoe  sBIUaD) ISURl |
swa]| paje[sy ¥ S9olyap enusasy

sjasfoid jendes jg Hunsi| Aleunung

046186 LL

628°LEL JsyiQ) g sefuairy ‘Buitield uswudinby

628°LEG'E SpuSLUBAOIGLLf AJilioe ® SIajuar) USURL)

ZL'ges's sty pojejsy P SIS enuaasy

895 1EG' L £66'305 128'865 u6z'12s'e 9€/'€19's 9G)°2.T'Y £G9°CE6’ )
rle'0ze’l LB2'E0) GOL'ZTL 6S0'65F I¥l'2ee 1S1°90¥% LEE'06E
000'002°L - - 000'052 000°006 00005+ -
YGZ'L09'LL Zo1'90r 299°0/¥ 1€2'818'2 685'98¥' 7 GO9'FLY'S ZTE'EFS')
295'L.ZG'FL £56'80S 178965 962'L25'E 862°'19'S 9G4 2LT'Y £59°CE6'L
005'298 - - 005'The 005'2vT 005248 a58° /52
0S/'¢ve's - - 0sz'les's 0SZ'L8S'Y 052188 el ira 4
SLEGLY'Y £66809 /28'865 9v5'eS6 986'68.L 900F95° BeF'EESL
s{ejo], £Z0Z Z20Z [l | T4 0202 6102 gL02
£Z0Z-610Z yelfiphg pajaalold

fewwng - sjasfold jeude)
1ebpng |euld 610Z
VN ALNNOD ¥31LNg



1808YS LONBLLIOJU] 198]4 SNUBASY Paphaul alf] Lo paseq 18 SIUSLUsIejdal ajajlfoA anuaasy  SSIoN

8LESLY Y £66°20S 178'965 9¥5'es6 98668/ 200'795°L zh'ees’lL
¥00'668 164'c01 colL'zel 60S' V61 1BE°TOL LOF'9lE a8zole
£52'¢53'C - - GO5°¢69 0£L'%99 9G6°F6Z L 6EE'GLO°L
- - - - - - 056'2¢81
L00'S99 2oL's0¥% 799'9/¥ {gze'veL) (1¥1°2€) {oseily) £58'69
gLE'GLY'Y
gle'sLE' Y £66'808 128'865 o¥5'c56 98668/ 000'79S'L gTh'ees’l
000'0e 00s'z 000 00S¥ 00G'S 005t 00S'¥
964°LLE 96L' VLT
{(s)
SSEYTe'T £6¥'905 129'565 105°189 069°'2/G ¥88' 9% 0L2'g5k
(g) {9) () (8} (g} ()
S5 /9Z S¥5°492
(@
Zz9°160°} 229'160°L 8120401
(z) (z)
sjelol €202 z202 1202 0z0Z 6102 2102
£20Z-610¢C 1ebpng pajoafoly

saalinog Buipund [el0)

¥1¥049 - [B007
$82IN08 IS0
Y1d0/1.03a0 - =lelg
spund jelepad B0
Spun4 GEEs - [BIspsy
spund [0€G - [elepsd

saounog Buipung

swdinbg B S912jYap anuaasy |E10f

019 *span) ‘suooadsu) - shg abie ad 000° LS
pue sng ews Jed gpgg @ wswsbeuep 10eloig

(vay) Bupungd %G1 / %98
Buipuny 9402 / %08
SA2IISS H] - SUBA

(vav) Bulpundg %G1 / %58
Bupund %402 / %08
s80KIaS Y - $9sng JewS

Buipuny %0¢ / %08
S92 H(J - sasng [[EWS papuaxg

Buipund %02 7 %08
SIBOISRAS pelenuIg

Buipund 24,02 / %08
sesng [essl] GE-08

SUI8)| pejejay R SSIOIaA SNUSASY

Ilejaq - poefoad jeude)d
196png [euid 6L0Z
Y1 AINNOD ¥311ng



05.°€¥Z'6 - - 0SZ'LEEE 052°185'F 05T IEE'T 69L'ZrF | seounog fulpung [2joL
0G4'8re - - 0sz'9Le 0sz'olL 052'aL riv'ec Y1HDd - 18007
000°009°F - - 000052 000°006 000'cSt - $804N0S JAUID
- - - - - - - ¥140/1000 - 3lels
05/'299°2 - - - 05,898 006'008'L Spund [elspsd JOUYIG
- - - - - - SLe'Ly SpUNA BEEGS - |BI8Daq
05292/ - - 400's9e’L 0SZ'96.°C 000°59 0857/ spundg /0£6 - eleps4
sesinog Guipuny
0GL'EVZ'E
05/ 'eve’'6 - - 0ST'IEE'C 0SZ°195'F 0SZ°LEET 69€°2P] syuewssoidun) Alfoe 2 SqNH JIsuel] |B30]
0§2'95 - - 0sl'el 0s.'81 05281 STAA A
0SZ'95 - - 062'81 05281 06281 5zZ'8e {(iawaunbay %} v14} sjuswaacidw] Aunaeg
sue] AjoeL oSN
- - - - - - - SepR-u-jiEd
s109foid 18Ul
- - - - - - - JOU0
- - - - - - - pueT g 107 Buped
- - - - B - - uoneis e|suer]
Auioey uMoIR PPN
000'000'6 - - 000’082’ 000°00S 'Y 000°052°z -
- - - - - - - EED!S]
- - - - - - - UONEIS UIer]
- - - - - - - pueT g 107 Bupjed
000'000°6 - - 000°0sZ'e 000'00S T 000°0S5E°E - ebeleg) g Uchels 18Ul
AoeS ploXO
00S 281 - - 00529 00529 00S°Z9 L' PLL
005'/81 - - 00529 005'ze 00529 00528 810
- - - - - - - pue § 107 bupped
- - - - - - - afieio}s sPIUsA
- - - - - - PPOLS abrien soBUBSIUER
- - - - - - - SOYO "URrLpY
Aajioe4 o IUEH
sjuswaaoldw AIised B SIsjUSD HSURI|
sfeje) £20¢ TE0Z LzZoz 0202 6102 210z ite3aq - 303foad jEaded
£Z0Z-6102 1ebpng p=03lfoig 1abBpng [eul] 6L0Z

Y1Id ALNNOD W3NG



005'Z98 - - 005°2F2 005°ZFe 00s'2/¢ 958°462
005'221 - - 0058y 00s'er 005°G4 145715

- - - - - - 856'L¥
000'6EE - - 00986 009'86 008'1¥7) -
000°1SE - - 00166 00%'s6 00Z'09} 9ZE Il
005298
006298 - - D0S‘ZPE 00S'ZFe 00s'2J€ 958'/5¢
052'95 05281 054°8L 0s/'8l

- 244'62
000°09 000'09
000'G/ 000'G/

- 929'G8
000°'0FS 000081 000°08L ooo'o8L

- 950°L8
05z el 0sl'er 0S4k 0S2°c¥

- 1829

, S0l £Z0T zzoT L20g 0202 6102 8L0Z

£202-610Z 18bpng pajaafold

saaunog Bujpung |BJ0]

V1d0g - |B00T
s80Ih0g J8tO
¥1d0/1040 - s1els
spuny [elspe4 Jayi0)
Spund gges - [elepad
spund Z0gs - |elspad

(pajedionuy) ssoinog Buipung

18430 § seniuauny ‘ABojouyoe] ‘uawdinbg |e1oL

dilg uo
TUBIE) U
syoafold 2O

diLg Uo
WEID U0
sanjiuauny jabuassed

S90IYSA JOSIAIRENS 7
oMU, IR
SANS Hoddng €
dILS U0
WeIH UQ
SNUIATY UON - SI[IUBA

dILS Uo
EIn UQ
alemyos 2 wswdinby seandwon

dI1sS U0
JEID UQ
sfuysiuing g juswdinby eayo

dILS U0
el uo
wswdinbg (doysg) soueusiuiepy

1810 7 sapuawy ‘Abojouyosj ‘Juswdinbgy

lielaq - jeefoig jepden
3sbpng jeuld 6102
YI¥ AINMOD ¥3 LN



BCRTA Resolution No. 18-06-02

Authorizing the Butler County Regiconal Transit Authority (BCRTA) to
Submit a 2018 Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development
(BUILD) Grant Application in Partnership with Miami University
(Ohio), the City of Oxford and the Talawanda School District,
Authorizing BCRTA to Serve as the Designated Recipient for the Grant,
and Recertifying the Availability of $200,000 in local match for the
project.

Whereas the mission of the BCRTA is to support quality of life and economic development through
public transportation; and ]

Whereas since 2012 BCRTA, Miami University, the City of Oxford and the Talawanda School District have
partnered to create and improve connections among employment, education, shared resources and
other quality of life services for citizens, students and visitors of the City of Oxford, Miami University,
Butler County and the region; and

Whereas the availability of a 2018 Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development (BUILD) grant
offers an opportunity to build upon that partnership and leverage public and academic assets to
increase economic competitiveness, livability, sustainability and safety by enhancing multimodal
connections among users and centers of employment, education and services; and

Whereas the partners have identified and prioritized an eligible project that aligns with program
priorities and selection criteria, will serve as a catalyst to revitalize the City of Oxford and Miami
University Campus, and will redesign the physical infrastructure for enhanced intermodal connections,
including regional and local public transportation; and

Whereas the United States Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration has awarded
BCRTA 52,668,750 federal share toward the completion of the $9,000,000 project; and

Whereas a portion of the planned Butler County Connect Multimodal facility project remains unfunded
and BCRTA wishes to identify and obtain multiple additional sources to complete the funding of the
praject as proposed; and

Whereas BCRTA has pledged, and BCRTA reaffirms, local match dollars of $200,000 toward the project
and Miami University has pledged local match dollars of 51,600,000 less the match required for the
existing award toward the project that may still be leveraged; and

Whereas BCRTA is the designated recipient for federal transportation funds; and

Whereas the application deadline is July 19, 2018,




Now, therefore be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby authorizes BCRTA to submit a
2018 Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development (BUILD) grant application on behalf of the
project partners and authorizes BCRTA to serve as the designated recipient for the project. Be it further
resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees shall certify the availability of $200,000 toward the local
match requirement of the project, less the existing award requirements, and authorizes the Executive
Director and the Chief Financial Officer to take all actions necessary to enact this resolution and
subsequent agreements subject to the review of BCRTA legal counsel.

Adopted JLZZO(L M

BCRTA Board President BCRTK Executlve_}mre




BCRTA Resolution No. 18-06-03

Amending Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA)
Board Policy 6-07: Drug and Alcohol Testing.

Whereas BCRTA is a Regiona! Transit Authority created by resolution of the Commissioners of
Butler County, Chio pursuant to Chapter 306 et seq. of the Ohio Revised Code; and

Whereas the BCRTA is a recipient of federal and state funds and must comply with all applicable
federal and state requirements as set forth in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) circulars and
regulations and state regulations as set forth In the Ohioc Revised Code; and

Whereas on June 16, 2010, the BCRTA Board of Trustees adopted Board Policy 6-07: Drug and
Alcohol Testing; and

Whereas Policy 6-07: Drug and Alcohol Testing has been subsequently amended on Aprii 20,
2011, September 21, 2011, September 17, 2014, May 17, 2017 and August 16, 2017; and

Whereas the Board wishes to address policy issues consistent with the Federal Transit
Administration’s most recent Drug and Alcohol Audit Program recommendations; and

Whereas the Board wishes to amend the policy with the language recommended by the Federal
Transit Administration policy building tool available at https://transit-
safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/Tools/PolicyBuilder/CreatePolicy.aspx.

Now therefore be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby adopts the attached
amended Board Policy: 6-07: Drug and Alcohol Testing. Furthermore, the BCRTA Board of

Trustees authorizes the Executive Director to take actions necessary to assyre organizational
compliance with the terms of this poticy.

Approved: Juge 20,201

(]-" ) _..,;—M‘“?‘""
Board President, BCRTA ExecutiVé DirectoﬁB};_Rw)




BCRTA POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL
6-07: BCRTA Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy

Effective: April 20, 2011

Revised: September 21, 2011

Revised: September 17, 2014

Revised: May 17, 2017

Revised: August 16, 2017

Administrative Modification:October 4, 2017
Revised: June 20, 2018

1



Reasorable-Suspisien—teaslirg
depleton—tesing— e e

g O T T I e e

()]

TriTeTe s o

1





















10



11




Table of Contents

1. PUtposeiof PONEY . s s . s o e 1y s Ty Ve ey e s S A P 13
2. (Covered EmplOVEEE s s s i s e s T S g T 13
3. ProNiDIted BN AV IO . ittt 13
4. Consequences for Violations .. .eu i e it 14
5. Circumstances fOr TESTING .iviuiiaiie ettt 14
B: __ Testing ProeeOlre S e srsmmssrossss ssssomriss s oo s ovmyis s e s 4w T8 e 5 T S e 17
2. TestRefusalsammsmmmmmmmrsmims s s s o s s i s S T TV PR 17
8. \oluntary:Self-Refarral.commmmmnmmmmmmms s merss s v v s s e T e T 18
9. Preseription. DU St e O D R S S S U 19
10, GO ECE RSO i oo it S o e b S e S emn e s A U S S R SRS 19
Attachment A: Covered POSITIONS .ooiieeeiiieie e 20

12



|. Purpose of Policy

This policy complies with 49 CFR Part 655, as amended and 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. Copies of
Parts 655 and 40 are available in the drug and alcohol program manager’s office and can be found on the

internet at the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Drug and Alcohol Program website

http://transit-safety.fta.dot.cov/DrugAndAlcohol/.

All covered employees are required to submit to drug and alcohol tests as a condition of employment in
accordance with 49 CFR Part 655.

Portions of this policy are not FTA-mandated, but reflect Butler County Regional Transit Authority’s
policy. These additional provisions are identified by bold text.

In addition, DOT has published 49 CFR Part 32, implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988,
which requires the establishment of drue-free workplace policies and the reporting of certain drug-related
offenses to the FTA.

All Butler County Regional Transit Authority employees are subject to the provisions of the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1988.

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is

prohibited in the covered workplace. An employee who is convicted of any criminal drug statute for a

violation occurring in the workplace shall notify Human Resource Coordinator no later than five days
after such conviction.

2. Covered Employees

This policy applies to every person, including an applicant or transferee, who performs or will perform a
“safety-sensitive function” as defined in Part 655, section 655.4.

You are a covered employee if vou perform any of the following:

e Operating a revenue service vehicle, in or out of revenue service

e  Operating a non-revenue vehicle requiring a commercial driver’s license

e Controlling movement or dispatch of a revenue service vehicle

e Maintaining (including repairs, overhaul and rebuilding) of a revenue service vehicle or
equipment used in revenue service

e Carrying a firearm for security purposes

See Attachment A for a list of covered positions by job title.

3. Prohibited Behavior

Use of illegal drugs is prohibited at all times. All covered employees are prohibited from reporting for
duty or remaining on duty any time there is a quantifiable presence of a prohibited drug in the body at or
above the minimum thresholds defined in Part 40. Prohibited drugs include:

13



e marijuana

® cocaine
e phencyclidine (PCP)
e opioids

e amphetamines

All covered employees are prohibited from performing or continuing to perform safety-sensitive functions
while having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol while performing safety-sensitive job
functions or while on-call to perform safety-sensitive job functions. If an on-call employee has consumed
alcohol, they must acknowledge the use of alcohol at the time that they are called to report for duty. If the
on-call employee claims the ability to perform his or her safety-sensitive function, he or she must take an
alcohol test with a result of less than 0.02 prior to performance.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol within four (4) hours prior to the
performance of safety-sensitive job functions.

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol for eight (8) hours following involvement
in an accident or until he or she submits to the post-accident drug and alcohol test, whichever occurs first.

4. Conseqguences for Violations

Following a positive drug or alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) test result or test refusal, the employee will
be immediately removed from safety-sensitive duty and referred to a Substance Abuse Professional.

Following a BAC of 0.02 or greater, but less than 0.04, the employee will be immediately removed from

safety-sensitive duties for at least eight hours unless a retest results in the employee’s alcohol
concentration being less than 0.02.

Treatment/Discipline

Per Butler County Regional Transit Authority policy, any employee who tests positive for drugs or
alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) or refuses to test will be referred to a Substance Abuse Professional
(SAP) and will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

Emplovees are responsible for the cost of rehabilitation services outside of the initial referral. An
emplovee that is receiving rehabilitation services may use their accrued PTO during their period of
rehabilitation.

Circumstances for Testing

Pre-Employment Testing

A negative pre-employment drug test result is required before an employee can first perform safety-

sensitive functions. If a pre-employment test is cancelled, the individual will be required to undergo

14



another test and successfully pass with a verified negative result before performing safety-sensitive
functions.

If a covered employee has not performed a safety-sensitive function for 90 or more consecutive calendar
days, and has not been in the random testing pool during that time, the emplovee must take and pass a
pre-employment test before he or she can return to a safety-sensitive function.

A covered emplovee or applicant who has previously failed or refused a DOT pre-employment drug
and/or alcohol test must provide proof of having successfully completed a referral, evaluation, and
treatment plan meeting DOT requirements.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing

All covered employees shall be subject to a drug and/or alcohol test when Butler County Regional Transit
Authority has reasonable suspicion to believe that the covered employee has used a prohibited drug
and/or engaged in alcohol misuse. A reasonable suspicion referral for testing will be made by a trained
supervisor or other trained company official on the basis of specific, contemporaneous, articulable

observations concerning the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of the covered employee.

Covered employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion drug testing any time while on duty. Covered

employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion alcohol testing while the employee is performing

safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after
the emplovyee has ceased performing such functions.

Post-Accident Testing

Covered employees shall be subject to post-accident drug and alcohol testing under the following

circumstances:

Fatal Accidents

As soon as practicable following an accident involving the loss of a human life, drug and alcohol
tests will be conducted on each surviving covered employee operating the public transportation
vehicle at the time of the accident. In addition, any other covered employee whose performance
could have contributed to the accident, as determined by Butler County Regional Transit
Authority using the best information available at the time of the decision, will be tested.

Non-fatal Accidents
As soon as practicable following an accident not involving the loss of a human life, drug and
alcohol tests will be conducted on each covered emplovee operating the public transportation
vehicle at the time of the accident if at least one of the following conditions is met:
(1) The accident results in injuries requiring immediate medical treatment away from the
scene, unless the covered emplovee can be completely discounted as a contributing
factor to the accident

15



(2) One or more vehicles incurs disabling damage and must be towed away from the

scene, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing
factor to the accident

(3)_The vehicle is a rail car, trolley car or bus, or vessel, and is removed from operation,
unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing factor to
the accident

In addition, any other covered employee whose performance could have contributed to the

accident, as determined by Butler County Regional Transit Authority using the best information
available at the time of the decision, will be tested.

A covered employee subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available, or it is considered a
refusal to test. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the delay of necessary medical
attention for the injured following an accident or to prohibit a covered emplovee from leaving the

scene of an accident for the period necessary to obtain assistance in responding to the accident or to

obtain necessary emergency medical care.

Random Testing

Random drug and alcohol tests are unannounced and unpredictable, and the dates for administering
random tests are spread reasonably throughout the calendar vear. Random testing will be conducted at all

times of the day when safety-sensitive functions are performed.

Testing rates will meet or exceed the minimum annual percentage rate set each year by the FTA
administrator. The current year testing rates can be viewed online at
www.lransportation.gov/odapc/random-testing-rates.

The selection of employees for random drug and alcohol testing will be made by a scientifically valid
method, such as a random number table or a computer-based random number generator. Under the

selection process used, each covered employee will have an equal chance of being tested each time

selections are made.

A covered employee may only be randomly tested for alcohol misuse while the emplovee is performing

safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after

the employee has ceased performing such functions. A covered employee may be randomly tested for
prohibited drug use anytime while on duty.

Each covered employee who is notified of selection for random drug or random alcohol testing must
immediately proceed to the designated testing site.

Random Testing — End of Shift

Random testing may occur anytime an emplovee is on duty so long as the employee is notified prior to
the end of the shift. Emplovees who provide advance, verifiable notice of scheduled medical or child care

16



commitments will be random drug tested no later than three hours before the end of their shift and random
alcohol tested no later than 30 minutes before the end of their shift. Verifiable documentation of a
previously scheduled medical or child care commitment, for the period immediately following an
emplovee’s shift, must be provided at least one (1) hour before the end of the shift.

Return to Duty Testing

Any emplovee who is allowed to return to safety-sensitive duty after failing or refusing to submit to a
DOT drug and/or alcohol test must first be evaluated by a substance abuse professional (SAP), complete a
SAP-required program of education and/or treatment, and provide a negative return-to-duty drug and/or
alcohol test result. All tests will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, Subpart O.

Follow-up Testing

Employees returning to safety-sensitive duty following leave for substance abuse rehabilitation will be

required to undergo unannounced follow-up alcohol and/or drug testing for a period of one (1) to five (5)

years, as directed by the SAP. The duration of testing will be extended to account for any subsequent
leaves of absence, as necessary. The type (drug and/or alcohol). number, and frequency of such follow-up
testing shall be directed by the SAP. All testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40,

Subpart O.

5. Testing Procedures

All FTA drug and alcohol testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, as amended.

Dilute Urine Specimen

If there is a negative dilute test result, Butler County Regional Transit Authority will conduct one
additional retest. The result of the second test will be the test of record.

Dilute negative results with a creatinine level greater than or equal to 2 mg/dL but less than or equal to 5
me/dL require an immediate recollection under direct observation (see 49 CFR Part 40, section 40.67).

Split Specimen Test

In the event of a verified positive test result, or a verified adulterated or substituted result, the employee
can request that the split specimen be tested at a second laboratory. Butler County Regional Transit
Authority guarantees that the cost of the split specimen test is covered in order for a timely analysis
of the sample, however: the emplovee is required to pay for the split sample test.

6. Test Refusals

As a covered emplovee, you have refused to test if yvou:

17



(1) _ Fail to appear for any test (except a pre-employment test) within a reasonable time, as
determined by Butler County Regional Transit Authority.

(2)  Fail to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete. An employee who leaves
the testing site before the testing process commences for a pre-employment test has not refused

to test.

(3) Fail to attempt to provide a breath or urine specimen. An employee who does not provide a
urine or breath specimen because he or she has left the testing site before the testing process
commenced for a pre-employment test has not refused to test.

(4) In the case of a directly-observed or monitored urine drug collection, fail to permit monitoring
or observation of your provision of a specimen.

(5)  Fail to provide a sufficient quantity of urine or breath without a valid medical explanation.

(6)  Fail or decline to take a second test as directed by the collector or Butler County Regional
Transit Authority for drug testing.

(7) __ Fail to undergo a medical evaluation as required by the MRO or Butler County Regional
Transit Authority’s Designated Employer Representative (DER).

(8)  Fail to cooperate with any part of the testing process.

(9) __ Fail to follow an observer’s instructions to raise and lower ¢lothing and turn around during a
directly-observed test.

(10) Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device used to tamper with the collection process.

(11)  Admit to the adulteration or substitution of a specimen to the collector or MRO.

(12) Refuse to sign the certification at Step 2 of the Alcohol Testing Form (ATF).

(13) Fail to remain readily available following an accident.

As a covered emplovee, if the MRO reports that vou have a verified adulterated or substituted test result,
vou have refused to take a drug test.

As a covered emplovee, if you refuse to take a drug and/or alcohol test, vou incur the same consequences

as testing positive and will be immediately removed from performing safety-sensitive functions, and
referred to a SAP.

/. Voluntary Self-Referral

Any employee who has a drue and/or alcohol abuse problem and has not been selected for
reasonable suspicion, random or post-accident testing or has not refused a drug or alcohol test may

voluntarily refer her or himself to the Human Resource Coordinator, who will refer the individual
to a substance abuse counselor for evaluation and treatment.

The substance abuse counselor will evaluate the employee and make a specific recommendation
regarding the appropriate treatment. Emplovees are encouraged to voluntarily seek professional
substance abuse assistance before any substance use or dependence affects job performance.

18



Any safety-sensitive employee who admits to a drug and/or alcohol problem will immediately be
removed from his/her safetv-sensitive function and will not be allowed to perform such function
until successful completion of a prescribed rehabilitation program.

8. Prescription Drug Use

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not prohibited.

However, the use of any substance which carries a warning label that indicates that mental
functioning, motor skills, or judgment may be adversely affected must be reported to Human
Resource Coordinator. Medical advice should be sought, as appropriate, while taking such
medication and before performing safetv-sensitive duties.

9. Contact Person

For questions about Butler County Regional Transit Authority’s anti-drug and alcohol misuse program,
contact the Human Resource Coordinator or Executive Director.

19



Attachment A: Covered Positions

Attachment A -- Covered positions by job title

Assistant Manager, Operations
Assistant Manager, Vehicle & Facilities Maintenance
Customer Service Representatives
Director of Demand Services
Director of Fixed Services
Dispatch Supervisor

Dispatcher

Maintenance Foreman
Maintenance Manager

Operations Manager

Operations Supervisor

Service Supervisor

Shop Foreman

Trainer

Transportation Coordinator

Utility Worker/Hostler

Vehicle Mechanic

Vehicle Operator

Vehicle Technician

20



Employee Receipt of Policy

Print Name :
Signature
Date

Attached is a copy of BCRTA's Drug and Alcohol Policy revised by the
Board of Trustees on May-47-2047June 20, 2017. Your signature below
certifies that you have received a copy of this policy and understand its
contents. Please sign and return this form to your supervisor. Please
contact the Human Resource Coordinator at 513-785-5022 if you have any
questions.

21



BCRTA Resolution No. 18-06-04

Authorizing the Butler County Regional Transit Authority (BCRTA)
Executive Director to Execute a Contract for the Purchase of
Commercial Heavy-Duty Tires.

Whereas, on November 15, 2017, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorized 2018 operating expenditures
including the purchase of commercial heavy-duty tires; and

Whereas, BCRTA anticipates the need for ninety (90} commercial heavy-duty tires per year; and

Whereas, commercial heavy-duty tires were determined to meet the five (5} requireaments for sealed
bidding to be appropriate; and

Whereas, BCRTA released an Invitation for Bids on May 11, 2018, for the purchase of commercial heavy-
duty tires at an annual per tire rate that could be exercised over a five {5} year period; and

Whereas, two (2} vendors submitted proposals; and

Whereas, Jeff Pohlman Tire & Auto of Hamilton, Ohio was determined to be the lowest responsive,
responsible bidder; and

Whereas, Jeff Pohiman Tire & Auto has met all bid requirements, including Buy America and other FTA
regulations.

Now, therefore be it resolved that the BCRTA Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the BCRTA Executive
Director to execute a five (5) year contract between BCRTA and Jeff Pohlman Tire & Auto, subject to
legal review, for the purchase of commercial heavy-duty tires, including a 10% contingency, at an
amount not to exceed $345,894.32. Furthermore, the BCRTA Board of Trustees authorizes the Executive
Director to take all actions necessary to comply with the terms of the contract and to enact this
resoiution.

Adopted June 20, 2018

Chris Lawson, BCRTA Board President Matthew [‘)ﬁtkevicz}&R-TA WC’EOI’




